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/Our Lady of Peace Cathedral is built in a simple rectangular pattern 
measuring approximately 51* - 4" across by 155' - 5" in length. /The 
street front is divided into three bays by large Doric columns, accen­ 
tuating the early Roman design of the building. The nine bays of the 
interior length are expressed by the butresses (a later addition for 
more support) on the side elevation. /

/The foundations of the building are coral rock as are the exterior walls 
of the entire building. Originally, the walls were plastered, but they 
have been stuccoed in more recent times for a more lasting finish.

- , 
Since the completion of the building in 1843, the exterior of the build­
ing has been altered in the following ways: 1) the Church tower has been 
changed three times, 2) the front portico was changed sometime around 
1910 and again in 1929 when the present columns were added, 3) the original 
wooded roof was replaced by heavy red ceramic tile in 1926, and 4) rein­ 
forced concrete butresses were bonded into the original pilasters of the 
church in 1940.

The interior of the church has also been changed considerably since 1843, 
but it has retained its simplicity and charm. The nine bays of the church 
are supported by two rows of columns dividing the nave and two side aisles. 
Originally, the ceiling was low, but this was replaced by the present 
high ceiling of redwood in 1871. The intricate vaulting and hand painted 
design of the ceiling' were done at this time. Raising the ceiling also 
allowed a balcony to be added to each side of the structure. When the 
butresses were, -added .in 1940, tie. rod-.s were also put in at' balrc'bny level 
to tie all the columns to the new butresses.

'." O s _  .

A pictorial glimpse of the changes that have taken place on the exterior 
of the building can be seen by comparing two of th'e photos attached. The 
first is a photograph of a stained glass window in the church which shows 
the exterior design shortly after it was built. The second photograph, 
taken from approximately the same angle, shows what the Church looks like 
today.
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TATEMENT OR SIGNIFICANCE

Our Lady of Peace Cathedral in Honolulu is significant not only for 
its age, construction, and condition, but also as a symbol of the 
Catholic Church's final acceptance in Hawaii.

/The American Protestant missionaries arrived in Hawaii in 1820, but the 
French Catholic priests did not come until 1828. Upon their:;arrival, 
they were granted "a piece of land in the neighborhood of the port" in 
Honolulu by King Kamehameha III. A chapel was built, but before more 
elaborate plans could be made, the Catholics were driven out of Honolulu 
at the insistence of the Protestant missionaries (1831). In 1839, 
practically at gunpoint, Kamehameha III declared religious toleration 
in Hawaii. The Catholic priests returned soon after, with plans for a 
larger church. This stone church, begun in 1840, was completed and 
dedicated as Our Lady of Peace on August 15, 1843. /
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Although yisibly altered on both the interior and exterior, the building 
is iii gooct condition. Corisiciefing the ea^line'ks '6*1? xtsn:c6tistruction 
date, it represents a significant architectural undertaking in the ^ 
Hawaiian islands. The vaulted ceiling, added in 1871, is also of con­ 
siderable aesthetic value and is unique in architectural design in^Hawaii,  '-''''' '   ' '  £-" '-'-> --'  is-..)  .ijf:-jj.'

'Our Lady of Peace is one of the oldest remaining buildings in Hawair 
and is a reminder of the great religious struggles that took place in 

Hawaiian Kingdom' between 1820 and 1850.the



Sehoofs, Robert, The Cathedral of Our Lady of Peace, Honolulu, 1949.

Paradise of the Pacific, September, 1937, pp. 5-7.
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Dorothy Riconda, Historian
ORGANIZATION DATE

Hawaii Register of Historic Places October 4, 1971
STREET AND NUMBER:

P. 0. Box 621
CITY OR TOWN:

Honolulu

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na­ 
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion 
in the National Register and certify that it has been 
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set 
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended 
level of significance of this nomination is: 
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'SUNAO KIDO, Chairman 
Dept. of Land & Natural Resource
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Hawaii , ,15

I hereby certify that this property is included in the 
National Register.
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